Town of Concrete Economic Development Commission
45672 Main Street
P.0. Box 39
Concrete, WA 98237
360.853.8401
info@concretewa.gov

Town of Concrete
Economic Development Commission

Meeting Agenda

January 14, 2026 - 6 p.m. 1. Call Meeting to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. RollCall
Economic
4. Minutes ~ November 12, 2025 (December 2025 Mtg Canceled)
Development
Commission Members 5. 0ld Business
P) Parsons - Election of Chair and Chair Pro-Tem
Dinah Kinney 6. New Business B

. \ - 2025 Review and 2026 Focus
Anne Bussiere — Chair

Pro Tem 7. Other Business

Wiley Moore 8. -Announcements

Guy Borgford - Chair 9. Next Meeting: February 11,2026 6pm
Town Council Liaison 10. Adjournment

Stephanie Semro




SCLAIMER: This is not a verbatim transcript of the meeting and is based upon the written notes, audio recording and memory of a participant, attendee, or video
observer.

Town of Concrete

Economic Development Commission
November 12, 2025

Call Meeting to Order: The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m.

Roll Call: Economic Commission Members: PJ Parsons, Dinah Kinney, Anne Bussiere, and
Guy Borgford.

Liaison: Stephanie Semro (via Zoom).

Audience Members Present: Billi Bellinger and Gabe Asarian.
Audience Members Online: None.

Staff Present: Deputy Clerk Heather Parker.

Minutes: October 8, 2025: Dinah made a motion to approve the minutes. PJ seconded the
motion. The motion carried unanimously.

Old Business: Guy stated they discussed 2026 events at the last meeting and having them be
more coordinated and aligned with the Chamber, the incoming Mayor, and local property
owners. He stated this would better align with the Comp Plan where it discusses leveraging and
utilizing pop-up events and pop-up stores, during other planned events.

Guy stated they also discussed the pump track project. He stated it should start in March and is a
10~12-week project. He stated they have been talking about having a launch event with live

music during the Youth Activity Day.

Audience member Billi Bellinger stated that she talked to Stacey and was told the project was
not going to start until June. Guy stated that is concerning. He stated this project, and its funding
were for job creation and not one job has been created yet. PJ asked what the parameters of the
funding are. Guy stated it does not state a specific timeframe for when jobs would be created but

in good faith, and if we apply again for funding, they may look at that.

Dinah asked what the delay is. Billi stated they have been told that the pump track portion gets
done first and what is left over will go toward the pavilion, but we have someone loaning out
bikes which could stop at anytime but if they were paid, that could be considered job creation.
Gabe asked if Dinah meant what the delay in the pump track construction is. Dina stated yes.
Billi stated the contractors are not available until then. Gabe stated he believes it may be weather

dependent.

Guy stated that Stacey knows more about this project than anyone else and the contractor that
she had recommended to the town, the Council did not choose. He stated they chose one that has
more flash. Councilmember Semro stated that was incorrect. She stated when bidding contracts
for government entities, the low bidder is chosen as long as they meet all the criteria.

ilPace




SCLAIMER: This is not a verbatim transcript of the meeting and is based upon the written notes, audio recording and memory of a participant, atiendee, or videg
observer.

PJ asked if there was specific language in the grant and if there was a specific number of jobs
that were to be created. Guy stated he believes they put down 3 full-time positions as well as
some part-time positions. PJ stated they should propose to the town that a part-time position be
created. Guy stated that was done and shot down by Council. PJ stated it should be brought back
again. Guy stated they could put something together to bring to Council in January.
Councilmember Semro stated if they want it in the 2026 budget, they should bring it to Council
before the end of the year. PJ asked what the estimate on the work that would be needed. Gabe
stated he believes they discussed 10-12 hours per week.

Guy stated there should be two positions. He stated one would be for the maintenance of the
trails and bike rentals and another position would be a Bike Park Manager who would oversee
the pump track construction and plan the launch event. Guy stated he can put a proposal together.

Billi stated it was also discussed at a meeting that increasing the public works hours would be
considered job creation. She also stated that the Public Works Director was asked to track the

hours that public works was spending on the bike park.

Guy stated that the Frisbee Golf was also discussed at the last meeting and that Billi had brought
up some concerns about communication and policies. Guy asked Billi if she had anything further
on that. Billi stated just that it was done without authorization. She stated that a bike park
position could also be utilized to rent out disks for the frisbee golf as well.

Guy stated that Wiley had requested to put a hold on the dog park till the'ﬁrst of the year. He
stated they are also still waiting to hear about the grant that was applied for.

Billi discussed a program that could possibly donate trees and shrubs that could be used at the
dog park to create a sound barrier. She also distributed some drawings that she made for the

layout.

Guy discussed where the charging stations will be placed. He stated they will be adjacent to the
dog park, near the town’s crappy old shack of a building but will create a nice flow from the
charging stations to the dog park. He stated this is a good start to some fundamental change.

He stated the Swap Meet area and having a farmers’ market there was also discussed at the last
meeting. He stated he spoke with Lisa Theodoratus and she had said that her dad wanted to build
a pavilion there but that the council at the time shot it down. He stated she is open to building a
covered area. Guy stated this could be year-round. Anne stated she believes the agreement is for
May through October which would still align with farming season. PJ stated with the creek in
that area, that an environmental review may be needed. It was stated that a covered area could
increase vendor participation when the weather is bad.

New Business: Bike Park Lauch Event: Guy stated that someone needs to plan this. PJ stated
this would be something the Bike Park Manager could do. Guy stated that whoever is hired for
that position should know how to promote events.

iilPaoca




SCLAIMER: This is not a verbatim transcript of the meeting and is based upon the written notes, audio recording and memory of a participant, attendee, or video
observer.

2026 Vision Meeting with Mayor: Guy stated that sometime in January after Jeremy starts, he
would like to plan a meeting with him and discuss what his vision is for the town. He stated it
would be helpful if they understood from town leadership what their vision is and what they
want the EDC to focus on. Guy stated they have brought capital to the town, presented it, had
people willing to invest, and it gets shot down. PJ asked what has been presented and how it has
been presented. She stated that maybe it is a communication issue. She stated that after attending
council meetings for the last year, there does not seem to be clear communication or requests that
are made to the Council. She stated when things are brought to the Council, they need to be clear
and hard facts with bullet points. Guy stated that maybe something could be formalized for when

they present things to Council.

Billi stated it would be great if the public that signs up to speak during the public comment
section of council meetings would submit something in writing before hand so Council had time
to review and are not surprised and could be more aware of what is being commented on.
Heather stated that she tries to encourage this so it can be in the Council packets. PJ stated she
has talked to a lot of people that have great ideas but are not good at presenting them. Guy
suggested that PJ develop a framework for presenting ideas to Council.

Discussion ensued on the public comment section of the Council meetings.

Anne stated that she and Dinah used to have meetings with the Mayor and discuss what she
wanted to see. Guy asked if anything came out of those meetings. Dinah stated it made for a
more friendly and cooperative working relationship.

Guy stated he would like to schedule a meeting or workshop with the new Mayor and the
Chamber. He stated the Chamber seems to be more for Val’s businesses and not a promotion of
all the businesses in town. PJ discussed a Chamber in Snohomish County that used to do a
spotlight week of different businesses and would highlight things about that particular business

on their website and Facebook page.

Other Business: Guy stated there is a meeting tomorrow night at the Theatre regarding the
Superior Building at 6pm. He asked if anyone knew how that came about.

Heather explained that this was originally going to be set up as a Council workshop to be held at
the Theatre but with the short timeframe and some miscommunication, Val decided they would
sponsor and host the meeting. Guy stated that something needs to be done with the Superior
Building and if people want to save it, it will take money to do so.

Discussion ensued on the building, how grants take time, and how right now there is someone
who wants to do something with it.

Billi stated she would like to know what email list Andrea used when she sent out the survey.
She stated her daughter-in-law was upset that she never received it. She stated it should have
been sent out to the younger families who are going to be the future of this town.

Heather stated she knows Andrea sent it out to the Council, Val and Jason at the Concrete Hearld.

11|l Paoce




SCLAIMER: This is not a verbatim transcript of the meeting and is based upon the written notes, audio recording and memory of a participant, attendee, or video
observer.

But was not sure what specific list was used. Anne stated that she had received it and Andrea
stated in that email that it could be forwarded or shared.

PJ stated that she has heard a lot of people complain about communication and not knowing
when things are going on. She stated the Superior Building discussion has been in the Skagit
Valley Herald, the Concrete Herald, all over Facebook and discussed at several Council
meetings. She stated that if people want to be informed, they also have to put an effort to do so.

Anne stated that somewhere in the previous goals there was discussion about working with the
school on getting students more work-related experience and ready for life after high school. She
stated she has joined a committee that will assist with this and she can bring information back to

the Commission.

PJ reported they are now in phase 2 of the SBA loan for the schoolhouse. She stated things are
progressing well.

Announcements: None.

Adjournment: Anne Bussiere made a motion for adjournment at 7:07 p.m. Dinah Kinney
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

Guy Borgford, Chair Attest: Anne Bussiere, Chair pro-tem

iwvlPaoe




